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City of Sebastopol  
Design Review Board/Tree Board Staff Report 

 
Meeting Date:  November 28, 2023  
Agenda Item:  7B 
To:   Design Review/Tree Board  
From:   John Jay, Associate Planner  
 
Subject:  Tree removal permit  
Recommendation: Denial  
Applicant/Owner: Sandborn Tree Services/Tim Moore  
File Number:  2023-068  
Address:  7182/7160 Healdsburg Ave  
CEQA Status:  Exempt  
General Plan:  Central Core (CC)  
Zoning:  Downtown Core (CD)  
  
 
 
Introduction: 
This is an application from Sandborn Tree Services on behalf of Tim Moore for the removal of 
two heritage Oak trees. The first tree is located on the north side of the property at 7182 
Healdsburg and measures 18.5” at diameter breast height. The second tree is a property line 
tree along 7160 Healdsburg and 7182 Healdsburg Ave and measures 21.8” at diameter breast 
height.  
 
 
Project Description: 
The applicant has applied for this tree removal permit for reasons that are listed within the 
arborist report, attached to this application. The report makes mention that both of the trees are 
in fair to good condition with no diseases or pests apparent. However, the tree located along the 
north side of 7182 Healdsburg Ave is adjacent to a concrete retaining wall and starting to show 
cracks along this wall. The other tree being requested for removal also has no signs of decay, 
disease, and is in good to fair condition. The application mentions that the request for removal is 
the continuous costs of cleaning the roofs, gutters, sidewalks, and awnings. 
 
 
Environmental Review: 
The proposed project has been determined to be exempt from further environmental review 
under Section 15304 – Minor Alterations to Land which includes minor alterations to existing 
topographical features, such as the removal of a tree. 
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Tree Protection Ordinance Consistency: 

Requirements for Tree Removal Permit: Section 8.12.060.D of the Tree Protection Ordinance 

states that a Tree Removal Permit may be approved when an International Society of 

Arboriculture (ISA) Certified Arborist has verified at least one of the following conditions:  

 

1. The tree is diseased or structurally unsound and, as a result, is likely to become a 

significant hazard to life or property within the next two (2) years.  

 

2. The tree poses a likely foreseeable threat to life or property, which cannot be 

reasonably mitigated through pruning, root barriers, or other management methods.  

 

3. The property owner can demonstrate that there are unreasonably onerous recurring 
maintenance issues, which are deemed necessary for safety or protection of property. 
The property owner is responsible for providing documentation to support such a claim.  
 
4. A situation exists or is proposed in which structures or improvements, including, but 
not limited to, building additions, second units, swimming pools, and solar energy 
systems, such as solar panels, cannot be reasonably designed or altered to avoid the 
need for tree removal.  
 
5. The tree has matured to such an extent that it is determined to be out of scale with 
adjacent structures and utilities, or with other landscape features.  
 
 
 
Public Comment: 
As of writing this report, the Planning Department has not received any public comments 
regarding the removal of these two trees. 
 
 
City Departmental Comment: 
The Planning Department routed this application to the various city departments and no 
comments have been provided as part of this report 
 
 
Analysis: 
Becky Duckles, an ISA Certified Arborist serving as the City Arborist, conducted an evaluation, 
and prepared an Arborist’s Report dated November 20, 2023, attached. This report focuses on 
Tree #2, a 21.8" coast live oak (Quercus agrifolia). It is growing on the property line between 
7160 & 7182 Healdsburg Ave. As discussed in Sandborn Tree Service's report submitted with 
the application to remove it, it is healthy with good structure and no pest or disease problems. It 
has dense, evergreen foliage and provides shade to the residence at 7160. It is not inherently 
hazardous and is not damaging any paving or infrastructure. Both property owners wish to 
remove it because of the leaf litter and acorns it drops, explaining that it is an onerous 
maintenance burden to clean up the leaves and debris from this tree. In an effort to preserve 
Sebastopol’s ’tree resource', the City adopted a tree ordinance in 1992 to protect its native trees 
from unneeded removal. In the past the Planning Dept, and City Council and City Arborist have 
denied requests to remove native oak trees because of leaf litter. It has been considered a 
normal and routine maintenance performed as needed by owners to preserve this resource and 



 3 

the benefits these trees provide, such as exchanging carbon dioxide and oxygen, providing 
shade, etc. It is my recommendation that there is insufficient reason to justify the removal of this 
healthy, attractive tree. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Board hear from the applicant, public, and deliberate for the removal 
of the two oak trees. However, based on the findings attached to this report staff is not 
recommending the removal of the two proposed trees. 
 
  
Should the board not agree with the decision of staff, then it’s recommended the board provide 
direction to staff on how the findings can be met and hold another public meeting on a date 
certain to discuss the approval for removing these trees.  
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
Exhibit A – Findings for denial 
Applications materials 
Arborist report 
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EXHIBIT A 
TREE REMOVAL PERMIT  

7182 and 7160 Healdsburg Ave  
Removal of Protected Trees  

 
Recommended Findings of Denial 

1. That the application is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 

Environmental Quality Act, pursuant to Section 15304, Class 4 which includes minor 

alterations to existing topographical features, such as the removal of a tree. 

 
2. The tree is diseased or structurally unsound and, as a result, is likely to become a 

significant hazard to life or property within the next two year in that the City Arborist 
found that there is no sign of significant disease or structural damage to warrant the 
removal of these two trees. 
 
 

3. The tree poses a likely foreseeable threat to life or property which cannot be reasonably 
mitigated through pruning, root barriers, or other management methods in that the City 
Arborist noted that there is no foreseeable threat to life or property by either of these 
trees. 
 

4. The property owner can demonstrate that there are unreasonably onerous recurring 
maintenance issues, which are deemed necessary for safety or protection of property. 
The property owner is responsible for providing documentation to support such a claim 
in that the applicant has not provided any proof or documentation to claim onerous 
reoccurring maintenance issues other than what is provided in the applicant’s arborist 
report.  
 
 

5. A situation exists or is proposed in which structures or improvements, including, but not 
limited to, building additions, second units, swimming pools, and solar energy systems, 
such as solar panels, cannot be reasonably designed or altered to avoid the need for 
tree removal in that there is no structural improvements or additions as part of the 
proposed removal or request of the applicant. 
 

6. The tree has matured to such an extent that it is determined to be out of scale with 
adjacent structures and utilities, or with other landscape features in that the City Arborist 
has stated in their report that the two oak trees are in good to fair condition with no 
reports of disease, pests or decay. 
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John Jay

From: Becky Duckles <bduckles@icloud.com>

Sent: Monday, November 20, 2023 5:42 PM

To: John Jay; Nzuzi Mahungu; Kari Svanstrom

Subject: 7160 Healdsburg Ave

 

I have visited this site and evaluated both trees . This report focuses on Tree #2, a 21.8" coast live oak (Quercus 

agrifolia). It is growing on the property line between 7160 & 7182 Healdsburg Ave. As discussed in Sandborn Tree 

Service's report submitted with the application to remove it, that it is healthy with good structure and no pest or 

disease problems. It has dense, evergreen foliage and provides shade to the residence at 7160. It is not inherently 

hazardous and is not damaging any paving or infrastructure.  

 

Both property owners wish to remove it because of the leaf litter and acorns it drops, explaining that is it an 

onerous maintenance burden to clean up the leaves and debris from this tree. In an effort to preserve Sebastopol’s 

’tree resource', the City adopted a tree ordinance in 1992 to protect its native trees from unneeded removal. In the 

past the Planning Dept, and City Council and City Arborist have denied requests to remove native oak trees 

because of leaf litter. It has been considered a normal and routine maintenance performed as needed by owners to 

preserve this resource and the benefits these trees provide, such as exchanging carbon dioxide and oxygen, 

providing shade, etc. It is my recommendation that there is insufficient reason to justify the removal of this 

healthy, attractive tree.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Becky Duckles 

 

Becky Duckles 

City of Sebastopol Consulting Arborist 


